
AGENDA

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, SGILIAU A 
DIWYLLIANT

2.00 PM, DYDD IAU, 18 MAWRTH 2021 

REMOTELY VIA TEAMS

Rhaid gosod pob ffôn symudol ar y modd distaw ar gyfer parhad y 
cyfarfod

Rhan 1

1. Croeso a galw’r rhestr  

2. Cyhoeddiad y Cadeirydd  

3. Datganiadau o fuddiannau  

4. Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol  (Tudalennau 5 - 10)

5. Gwasanaeth Llyfrgell Castell-nedd Port Talbot - Diweddariad Covid-
19  (Tudalennau 11 - 18)

6. Adroddiad ar y Gwasanaeth a'r Lles  (Tudalennau 19 - 42)

7. Craffu Cyn Penderfynu  
i. To select appropriate items from the Cabinet Board agenda 

for pre-decision scrutiny (Cabinet Boards reports enclosed for 
Scrutiny Members)

8. Blaenraglen Waith  (Tudalennau 43 - 44)

9. Eitemau brys  
Mynediad i gyfarfodydd i benderfynu a ddylid gwahardd y cyhoedd 
o'r eitem ganlynol yn unol ag Is-adran 100a(4) a (5) Deddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 1972 a'r paragraffau eithriedig perthnasol o Ran 4 



Atodlen 12a y Ddeddf uchod.

10. Mynediad i gyfarfodydd  
Access to Meetings to resolve to exclude the public for the following 
item(s) pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the relevant exempt paragraphs of Part 
4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act.

Rhan 2

Archwilio gwybodaeth breifat a materion monitro sy'n cael eu 
hadrodd gan:

11. Craffu Eitem/Eitemau Preifat Cyn Penderfynu  
i. To select appropriate private items from the Cabinet Board 

agenda for pre-scrutiny (Cabinet Board Reports enclosed for 
Scrutiny Members).

K.Jones
Prif Weithredwr

Canolfan Ddinesig
Port Talbot Dydd Gwener, 12 Mawrth 2021



Aelodaeth y Pwyllgor: 

Cadeirydd: S.H.Reynolds

Is-gadeirydd: R.Mizen

Cynghorwyr: M.Crowley, S.Harris, J.Jones, D.Keogh, S.Miller, 
J.D.Morgan, R.Phillips, M.Protheroe, S.Renkes, 
A.J.Richards, D.Whitelock, R.W.Wood a/ac 
J.Hale

*Aelodau 
Cyfetholedig sy’n 
Pleidleisio

M.Caddick, A. Amor a/ac L.Newman

*Aelodau 
Cyfetholedig nad 
ydynt yn Pleidleisio

R.De Benedictis

Nodiadau: 

(1) Os yw aelodau'r pwyllgor neu'r rhai nad ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor 
am gynnig eitemau perthnasol i'w cynnwys ar yr agenda cyn 
cyfarfodydd y dyfodol, rhaid iddynt roi gwybod i'r Prif 
Weithredwr/Cadeirydd 8 niwrnod cyn y cyfarfod. 

(2) Os yw'r rhai nad ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor am fod yn bresennol ar 
gyfer eitem o ddiddordeb, mae'n rhaid rhoi rhybudd ymlaen llaw 
(erbyn 12 hanner dydd ar y diwrnod cyn y cyfarfod).  Gall y rhai nad 
ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor siarad ond nid oes ganddynt hawl i 
bleidleisio, cynnig nac eilio unrhyw gynnig.

(3) Fel arfer, ar gyfer trefniadau cyn craffu, bydd y Cadeirydd yn argymell 
eitemau gweithredol sydd ar ddod i'w trafod/herio.  Mae hefyd yn 
agored i aelodau'r pwyllgor ofyn i eitemau gael eu trafod - er y 
gofynnir i'r aelodau ddewis a dethol yma o ran materion pwysig.

(4) Gwahoddir aelodau perthnasol Bwrdd y Cabinet hefyd i fod yn 
bresennol yn y cyfarfod at ddibenion Craffu/Ymgynghori.



(5) Gofynnir i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Craffu ddod â'u papurau ar gyfer Bwrdd 
y Cabinet i'r cyfarfod.



- 1 -

Dydd Iau, 21 Ionawr 2021

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG, SGILIAU A DIWYLLIANT

(Via Microsoft Teams)

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Iau, 21 Ionawr 2021

Cadeirydd: Cynghorydd  S.H.Reynolds

Is-gadeirydd: Cynghorydd R.Mizen

Cynghorwyr: M.Crowley, S.Harris, J.Jones, S.Miller, 
J.D.Morgan, R.Phillips, M.Protheroe, S.Renkes, 
A.J.Richards, D.Whitelock a/ac R.W.Wood

Aelodau 
Cyfetholedig sy’n 
Pleidleisio:

M.Caddick a/ac A. Amor

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol

A.Evans, A.Thomas, C.Millis, M.Daley, 
PWalker, H.Lervy, J.Woodman-Ralph a/ac 
C.Davies

Gwahoddedigion y 
Cabinet:

Cynghorwyr  P.A.Rees a/ac C.Clement-Williams

1. COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAENOROL 

Cymeradwywyd cofnodion cyfarfod blaenorol y Pwyllgor Craffu 
Addysg, Sgiliau a Diwylliant a gynhaliwyd ar 19 Tachwedd 2020.

2. DIWEDDARIAD LLAFAR - EFFEITHIAU COVID-19 AR YR ADRAN 
ADDYSG 

Derbyniodd yr Aelodau ddiweddariad llafar ar yr effeithiau y mae 
COVID-19 wedi'u cael ar yr Adran Addysg, Sgiliau a Diwylliant. 
Tynnwyd sylw at y ffaith y byddai'r diweddariad yn parhau'n bennaf ar 
y gweithgareddau yn ystod mis Ionawr. 

Nodwyd bod dysgu o bell wedi bod ar waith ym mhob ysgol ers 4 
Ionawr 2021, fodd bynnag, roedd ysgolion yn parhau i fod ar agor i 

Tudalen5

Eitem yr Agenda4



- 2 -

Dydd Iau, 21 Ionawr 2021

ddisgyblion gweithwyr allweddol a dysgwyr sy'n agored i niwed. 
Roedd presenoldeb corfforol yn yr ysgol wedi cynyddu, roedd 400 o 
ddisgyblion gweithwyr allweddol a/neu ddysgwyr agored i niwed yn 
bresennol yr wythnos gyntaf yn ôl ym mis Ionawr 2021. Roedd y 
presenoldeb hwnnw wedyn wedi cynyddu i 1,000 o ddisgyblion, a 
oedd yn cyfateb i 5% o boblogaeth y disgyblion. Roedd ysgolion 
wrthi'n annog dysgwyr agored i niwed i fynychu'r ysgol. 

Tynnodd swyddogion sylw at y ffaith nad oeddent wedi derbyn y 
canllawiau gweithredol gan Lywodraeth Cymru eto ynghylch agor 
ysgolion. Fodd bynnag, roeddent wedi diweddaru ysgolion ar lafar ar 
2 bwynt penodol a oedd yn ymwneud â chadw pellter cymdeithasol a 
gwisgo gorchuddion wyneb. Nodwyd bod cadw pellter cymdeithasol 
yn cael ei ystyried yn ddiangen ar gyfer disgyblion mewn amgylchedd 
ystafell ddosbarth cyn diwedd mis Rhagfyr 2020, ond oherwydd 
amrywiolion newydd, roedd asesiadau risg bellach wedi'u diwygio 
sy'n golygu y barnwyd bod angen i ddisgyblion gadw pellter 
cymdeithasol yn yr ysgol, yn enwedig mewn ysgolion uwchradd. 
Barnwyd bod gorchuddion wyneb hefyd yn angenrheidiol ar gyfer 
disgyblion mewn ystafelloedd dosbarth ac ardaloedd cymunedol yn yr 
ysgol, yn enwedig mewn ysgolion uwchradd. Mae hyn yn seiliedig ar 
asesiadau risg lleol. Byddai'r trefniadau hyn yn cael eu hadolygu 
unwaith eto erbyn diwedd mis Chwefror.

Nodwyd y bu datganiad yn y wasg yn ddiweddar ynghylch Cyfres 
Arholiadau ar gyfer Cyfnod Allweddol 4 a Chyfnod Allweddol 5.  
Roedd hyn yn arwain at raddau asesu canolfannau a fyddai'n cael eu 
darparu ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn academaidd i ddisgyblion ym 
mlynyddoedd 10, 11, 12 a 13 lle bo hynny'n berthnasol. Nodwyd bod 
swyddogion yn gweithio gydag ysgolion er mwyn sicrhau ymagwedd 
gyson. Soniwyd y byddai ysgolion yn dod yn ganolfan apelio ar gyfer 
y disgyblion neu'r rhieni hynny nad ydynt efallai'n fodlon ar y 
canlyniadau. Unwaith eto, sicrhaodd swyddogion yr aelodau y 
byddent yn gweithio gydag ysgolion ac yn aros am arweiniad gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru. 

Tynnodd swyddogion sylw'r aelodau at y ffaith eu bod yn cyfarfod â 
phenaethiaid bob dydd i sicrhau bod lles staff yn cael ei gynnal. 
Nodwyd bod sesiynau Iechyd a Lles wedi'u caffael i gefnogi 
penaethiaid.

Cafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch argaeledd dyfeisiau ar gyfer disgyblion 
a phryderon cysylltedd. Nodwyd yn ystod y cyfyngiadau symud cyntaf 
ym mis Mawrth/Ebrill 2020, nad oedd gan 1,300 o ddisgyblion 

Tudalen6



- 3 -

Dydd Iau, 21 Ionawr 2021

fynediad at ddyfais a bod gan 228 o aelwydydd ddiffyg cysylltedd 
addas. I'r disgyblion hynny nad oedd ganddynt fynediad at ddyfais 
a/neu a oedd â materion cysylltedd, darparwyd Chromebook ac 
unedau MiFi iddynt. 

Yn dilyn y cyfnod o ddysgu ar-lein yn ddiweddar oherwydd y 
cyfyngiadau symud, roedd y cyngor hefyd wedi darparu dyfeisiau 
priodol i athrawon.

Nodwyd y bu oedi wrth brynu Chromebooks yn 2020, gan ohirio 
derbyn yr eitemau hyn. 

Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau am brofion llif unffordd a oedd yn cael 
eu treialu ar hyn o bryd, roedd ysgolion Castell-nedd Port Talbot wedi 
dewis peidio â chymryd rhan, oherwydd y pwysau presennol ar 
ysgolion i sicrhau bod addysg yn flaenoriaeth allweddol.

Cafodd yr Aelodau’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ddarparu 
gwasanaethau'r Gwasanaeth Cynhwysiant. Nodwyd bod y 
Gwasanaeth Cwnsela mewn Ysgolion wedi sefydlu dwy linell gymorth 
ar gyfer staff ysgol a disgyblion cynradd yn ogystal â chynllun 
goruchwyliaeth peilot. Tynnwyd sylw at y ffaith bod y ddau 
wasanaethau wedi'u hariannu gan grantiau.

Trafodwyd diwygio'r cwricwlwm a phwysigrwydd parhau â dysgu 
cyfunol fel elfen allweddol mewn ysgolion ar ôl COVID-19. 

Nodwyd bod y gwasanaeth Ieuenctid wedi ennill marc ansawdd 
efydd.

Holodd yr aelodau a oedd posibilrwydd y gallai disgyblion gael 
blwyddyn ychwanegol i'w galluogi i ddal i fyny ar yr addysg y gallent 
fod wedi'i cholli o ganlyniad i COVID-19. 

Cafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch y cymorth a ddarperir i rieni nad ydynt 
yn siarad Cymraeg. Tynnodd y swyddogion sylw at yr ymagwedd 
ragweithiol yr oeddent wedi'i chyflawni ar gyfer yr ysgolion oherwydd 
yr anawsterau sy’n gallu ymddangos o addysg gartref gyda disgyblion 
o ysgolion Cymraeg. Buont yn trafod sgiliau yr oedd disgyblion wedi'u 
hennill megis trawsieithu a phwysigrwydd hyn. 

Gofynnodd yr Aelodau a fyddai profion llif unffordd yn cael eu cynnig i 
ofalwyr plant. Cadarnhaodd Swyddogion y byddent yn cwestiynu hyn 
y tu allan i'r cyfarfod.

Tudalen7



- 4 -

Dydd Iau, 21 Ionawr 2021

Canmolodd yr Aelodau Craffu ac Aelodau'r Cabinet waith y 
swyddogion.

Yn dilyn craffu, nodwyd y diweddariad.

3. YMGYNGHORI AR GYNIGION CYLLIDEBOL 2021/22 

Derbyniwyd trosolwg ar gynigion cyllideb ddrafft Addysg, Hamdden a 
Dysgu Gydol Oes 2021/2022.

Tynnwyd sylw at y ffaith bod y cynigion a gynhwyswyd yn yr 
adroddiad yn nifer bach o strategaethau arbed y craffwyd ac yr 
ymgynghorwyd arnynt eisoes, ac a gymeradwywyd gan y cyngor ar 6 
Mawrth 2020.

Rhoddwyd gwybodaeth i'r Aelodau hefyd am y pwysau cyllidebol i'r 
gwasanaeth, ynghyd â'r arbedion, y toriadau a'r cyfleoedd i 
gynhyrchu incwm y manylir arnynt yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd. 

Yn ystod y drafodaeth ar y gyllideb, mynegwyd pryder ynghylch yr 
effaith y mae COVID-19 wedi'i chael yn ystod y cyfnod digynsail hwn 
a'r effeithiau anrhagweladwy y mae wedi'u cael ar y gymuned a'r 
gyllideb. Roedd yr Aelodau am gael sicrwydd bod Swyddogion yn 
hyderus na fyddai eu rhagfynegiadau ar gyfer y costau gwariant yn 
cynyddu'n ddramatig ar gyfer y flwyddyn sydd i ddod. Nododd 
swyddogion y byddai effeithiau COVID-19 yn parhau am gyfnod eto, 
fodd bynnag, mae'r bartneriaeth rhwng y cyngor ac ysgolion yn gryf 
gan sicrhau bod y camau a oedd yn cael eu cymryd yn ogystal â 
chynllunio yn y dyfodol wedi'u costio'n ofalus. Tynnodd yr Aelod 
Cabinet dros Gyllid sylw hefyd at y gefnogaeth y mae Llywodraeth 
Cymru wedi parhau i'w darparu i'r cyngor drwy'r cyfnodau anodd hyn. 

Roedd gan yr Aelodau bryderon ynghylch y nifer sy'n manteisio ar y 
Gwasanaeth Glanhau oherwydd cyllidebau ysgolion. Sicrhaodd 
swyddogion yr aelodau fod y Gwasanaeth Glanhau mewnol wedi 
rhagori ei hun dros y misoedd diwethaf oherwydd effeithiau COVDI-
19 a'i fod ar sylfaen gadarn a bod galw amdano. 

Gofynnwyd a fyddai Orendy Margam yn gallu dychwelyd i fod yn 
lleoliad priodas eleni, os yw’r broses frechu’n cael ei chwblhau mewn 
modd amserol. Holodd yr Aelodau hefyd a oedd Llywodraeth Cymru 
yn ariannu'n colled o £279,000 mewn incwm i Orendy Margam. 
Nodwyd, cyn gynted ag y bydd Orendy Margam yn ailagor fel lleoliad 

Tudalen8



- 5 -

Dydd Iau, 21 Ionawr 2021

ac nid fel canolfan frechu, y caiff ei ddefnyddio eto. Nododd 
swyddogion fod Llywodraeth Cymru, fel y crybwyllwyd eisoes gan yr 
Aelod y Cabinet dros Gyllid, wedi bod yn gefnogol iawn ac y byddai'n 
rhoi cymorth o fewn rheswm.
Diolchodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Addysg, Sgiliau a Diwylliant i'r 
Aelodau Craffu am eu cyfraniad i'r Ymgynghoriad ar y Gyllideb a 
chanmolodd y Swyddogion am eu hymdrechion.

Yn dilyn craffu ar fanylion y gyllideb yn yr adroddiad, atgoffwyd yr 
aelodau y byddai eu sylwadau o'r cyfarfod hwn yn rhan o'r ymateb 
ffurfiol i'r ymgynghoriad ar gyfer cyllideb 2021/22. Gofynnwyd iddynt, 
os oedd ganddynt unrhyw gynigion eraill ar gyfer arbedion cyllidebol 
nad oeddent wedi'u cynnwys yn yr adroddiad amgaeedig, fynd ati i 
gysylltu â Swyddogion i'w hystyried.

4. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 2020-21 

Nododd yr Aelodau y Flaenraglen Waith.

CADEIRYDD

Tudalen9



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen10



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

EDUCATION, SKILLS AND CULTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
              

18th March 2021

REPORT OF HEAD OF TRANSFORMATION
ANDREW THOMAS

MATTER FOR INFORMATION

WARDS AFFECTED: All

Neath Port Talbot Library service – COVID 19 Update

Purpose of the Report 

To provide Members with an update on the performance of the 
Library Service during COVID-19 and outline the support and 
range of services offered to residents.

Executive Summary

Neath Port Talbot Library Service has adapted and continued to 
operate during COVID 19, providing residents with a range of on 
line services and activities in addition to traditional book lending. 

Background 

On 17th March 2020 all Neath Port Talbot libraries, the mobile 
library and the home delivery service closed or stopped operating, 
in line with national restrictions. An overview of how the Service 
responded and adapted to continue delivering services to the 
residents of Neath Port Talbot and an assessment of user 
engagement follows. 

Closure and Reopening    

During the early stages of closure, a Service Recovery plan was 
developed in consultation with NPT Health & Safety unit, library 
staff, Unions, HR and Welsh Government to ensure that the safety 
of staff and the public would be of primary consideration at all 
times. Our libraries and mobile services remained closed until 22nd 

Tudalen11

Eitem yr Agenda5



June when a phased reopening, in line with Welsh Government 
guidelines, began with a Call and Collect service at Neath, Port 
Talbot and Pontardawe libraries. The home delivery service to our 
housebound users also resumed on this date. 

Over the next two months Call and Collect services were 
introduced at Cwmafan and Glynneath libraries on the 27th July, on 
the Mobile Library on 3rd August and at Baglan, Sandfields and 
Skewen on the 17th August.     

At the next stage in service recovery and in keeping within Welsh 
Government’s revised guidelines Neath, Port Talbot and 
Pontardawe all reopened to offer limited access to stock and ICT 
on August 12th. Cwmafan and Glynneath followed on 14th 
September and Baglan, Sandfields and Skewen on 28th 
September.  
Libraries continued to operate in this way until 21st December 
when new rules required closure to the public once again, but 
unlike in the spring of 2020, we have been able to carry on with our 
Call and Collect service at all our branch and mobile libraries and 
the Home Delivery Service has also continued to serve its 
members.  
During this period of Call and Collect and restricted access library 
opening hours have been reduced at all libraries ranging from 16 
to 27 hours, maintaining regular opening days and meeting 
demand. All libraries have been regularly supported and inspected 
by NPT Health & Safety together with the Health and Safety 
Executive to ensure full compliance with regulations. Library 
buildings have also been used to support a number of community 
initiatives.

Online Services  

At the beginning of April the Service developed a programme of 
online events and activities for both adults and children that has 
continued to run to the present day. These activities have included 
live and recorded weekly song and rhyme sessions aimed at the 
very young, weekly storytimes for primary age children, 
participation in the Summer Reading Challenge, a programme of 
Adult Learners Week activities, working alongside National Library 
of Wales to promote an all Wales online reading group, a 
programme of events and activities to mark the 75th anniversary of 
VE Day and a series of events to mark World Book Day on 4th 

Tudalen12



March which included special pre-recorded story sessions for 
schools. Over the last twelve months the Service has expanded its 
online presence to now include a YouTube channel in addition to 
its Facebook, Twitter and Instagram accounts.                                                                               

The Library Service now plays a prominent role as a steering 
group member of the all-Wales Estyn Allan 2021 project, which is 
delivering high quality digital training skills to library staff across 
Wales and creating new and innovative digital events and 
activities.    

In addition to the engagement activities outlined above the Service 
acted as the lead authority in Wales to secure an extra £250,000 
funding from Welsh Government to enhance the provision and 
content of ebooks and other All Wales digital lending services at 
the start of the pandemic. An evaluation of the take up of e lending 
service can be found in the Performance section below.   
Grant funding from Welsh Government has also been achieved to 
deliver a tablet lending scheme to library members, giving access 
to online resources with support from library staff. This project is 
still in its infancy so an evaluation is not yet possible. It is 
envisaged that the scheme will provide vital access to digital 
technology and online services for our residents who are unable to 
use the internet for whatever reason. It will be an essential support 
to our users where access to the library remains a barrier as we go 
through 2021.     
On March 1st the library service launched PressReader, an online 
subscription service free to library members, providing access to 
over 6000 local and international newspapers and magazines.  

Staff and Training 

Senior library staff were all able to move to home working once 
libraries closed. Before developing the online programme they 
provided essential support to our many users and new members 
who were eager to access our e lending services. 

Four members of library staff were redeployed to support the Track 
and Trace team, three of which have now returned to their 
substantive post. One other remains as a Team Leader. Other 
library staff volunteered to help support the communities of Neath 
Port Talbot with the delivery of food parcels and others supported 
residents with regular phone calls to library members who were 
isolated or living alone. 

Tudalen13



Staff have and are undertaking training to enhance their digital 
skills in partnership with Digital Communities Wales and as part of 
Estyn Allan 2020.      

Service Developments

As stated in the Library Review of 2019 the Library Service had a 
number of development plans for 2020-21. The relocation of 
Library HQ/ELRS from Velindre to Ynsymaerdy was undertaken 
between August and November 2020. As well as relocating staff 
over 240,000 items of stock were also successfully transferred.   

The new Mobile Library vehicle is now in operation. This allowed 
us to free up one of our other mobile libraries for use as the 
Immbulance by the local health board, creating a mobile 
vaccination centre for Neath Port Talbot.   

The Service successfully bid for £45,000 of grant funding from 
Welsh Government’s Cultural Resilience Fund. This funding 
means that we can plan for reopening and recovery in 2021 and to 
ensure that libraries are at the forefront of social and economic 
recovery from COVID-19. Libraries will play a vital role in bringing 
communities and generations back together and in delivering 
essential training opportunities to our residents. 

 

Performance 

All performance figures are made in comparisons with 2019 data. 

The number of visits to made to libraries during the period of 
restricted access (August 12 to December 21) was 54,063. This is 
at 26% of what would normally be expected for the same period. 

Loans of books at 59,939 is at 39% of 2019 performance. Call and 
Collect has provided over 4,000 book bags to our members since 
June. These bags were a popular choice for children during the 
Summer Reading Challenge and especially during the present 
lockdown as it provides them with much needed access to books 
when most were away from the classroom.

Tudalen14



The mobile library has continued to operate since the service 
resumed in August and its delivery/collection service is running at 
45% of its usual performance. 

Over the course of the pandemic our e lending services have, as 
expected, grown quite significantly.  

Comparing the period April to November 2020 with the same 
period in 2019 shows the following:

 Eaudio loans have increased by 128% to 9041
 Ebook loans have increased by 95% to12577
 The number of active users has increased by 78% to 558  

Chart shows the monthly figures in terms of Physical Visits, 
Physical Issues and E issues from April 2020 to December 2020. 

April
May

June
July

Augu
st

Se
ptember

Octo
ber

Nove
mber

Dece
mber

0

3000

6000

9000

12000

15000

18000

Visits Issues Eissues

Community Libraries

The library service has continued to provide support to the network 
of Community libraries by offering advice and guidance on 
regulations and information on grant funding to support recovery. 
Blaengwynfi, Briton Ferry and Taibach have all received grants to 
support service recovery and enhance services.

Financial Impacts:
No Implications

Tudalen15



Integrated Impact Assessment:

There is no requirement to undertake an Integrated impact 
Assessment as this report is for information purposes.

Valleys Communities impacts:

No Implications

Workforce Impacts:

No Implications

Legal Impacts:

No implications

Risk Management Impacts:

No implications

Consultation:

There is no requirement for external consultation on this item to
Include the full consultation report as an appendix.

Recommendation:

That the information presented in this Report be noted.

Reasons for Proposed Decision

Matter for information. No decision required. 

Appendices 
None

List of Background Papers
None

Officer Contact
Wayne John, County Librarian
01639 899829

Tudalen16



 w.john@npt.gov.uk  
Paul Doyle, Children’s Literacy Officer,
01639 899829
 p.a.doyle@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen17

mailto:w.john@npt.gov.uk
mailto:p.a.doyle@npt.gov.uk


Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Education, Skills and Culture Cabinet Board

18th March 2021

Report of the Head of Transformation Andrew Thomas

Matter for Information 

Wards Affected: 
All Wards

Report on the work of Cynnydd and the Wellbeing Service

Purpose of the Report:

 To provide Members with information on the work and impact of 
the Wellbeing and Behaviour Service and Cynnydd.

 To provide Members with information on future work, 
opportunities and challenges. 

Executive Summary:
Members have previously seen case studies evidencing the impact of 
the support provided by Cynnydd and the Wellbeing and Behaviour 
Service in the report Inclusion Service Report on Overview of Support 
for Children and Young People with Additional learning Needs. This 
report will provide more detail on the work undertaken by the 
services, including the impact, challenges and future work plan. 

Tudalen19

Eitem yr Agenda6



Background:
Wellbeing & Behaviour Service Background.
The service was established in June 2016 as a result of the Review 
of Inclusion in Neath Port Talbot 2014 and the Reorganisation of 
Provision for Pupils who receive their Education Otherwise than at 
School 2015. The remit of the service is to provide support for 
schools, staff, learners and families with social, emotional and 
behavioural difficulties (SEBD). SEBD refers to the internalised or 
externalised behaviours that we may see in schools. 

The service consists of workers from a range of backgrounds, but all 
with extensive experience of engaging with vulnerable children, 
young people and their families. The service’s ethos is built on the 
importance of relationships and that all behaviour is communication. 
Understanding the reasons for behaviour is fundamental to identifying 
the appropriate strategy and intervention. The service has developed 
a school cluster model of working which provides schools with key 
links for support and allows for a more pro-active approach to 
supporting children and young people. This model of working ensures 
that the service have a secure understanding of the schools and 
communities they are working in. Support provided by the service 
includes:

 Direct intervention for learners both within the school setting 
and in the wider community; transition support for learners 
moving schools, support for transition in or out of specialist 
educational provision, transition from primary to secondary 
settings or transition for learners who have moved into the area 
and need supported integration. 

 Covid-19 has resulted in the service responding innovatively in 
supporting caseloads both physically in school hubs where 
possible, as well as virtually through Microsoft Teams, phone 
calls and garden visits. Play kits have been provided to some 
caseload families with ideas on activities to encourage play at 
home, these kits are also then used in virtual sessions with 
members of the team.  

Tudalen20



 Project work takes place including Forest/Coastal School 
sessions, wellbeing workshops for pupils, school holiday 
provision and parent workshops on the impact of adverse 
childhood experiences. Forest School and outdoor learning 
sessions have continued with small groups following 
appropriate risk assessments within schools. Recent grant 
funding has allowed us to provide all schools with an outdoor 
learning kit and the service is providing example activities to 
support this resource.

 The NPT Young People’s Mental Health Forum is now in its 
fourth year with an average attendance of 26 young people, 
representing all our secondary and specialist provision schools. 
The aim of the forum is to raise awareness of mental health 
issues within our schools and for the young people to drive 
change. Last year the young people held a very successful 
conference highlighting their work. Having this work led by the 
young people enables them to have a say in issues that are 
important to them and have their contributions effect positive 
change, which leads to more meaningful outcomes. Examples 
of this include the establishment of lunchtime emotional 
wellbeing support groups, designing awareness raising posters 
and artwork to be displayed around the schools, undertaking 
research on the impact of mental health on young people and 
working with cluster primaries to raise awareness.

 A Primary Therapy Service has been established by working 
collaboratively with the School Based Counselling Service 
(SBCS) to utilise grant funding to extend the offer of counselling 
to primary school pupils from year 1. SBC is currently funded as 
a statutory service from Year 6. This ensures identification and 
intervention takes place earlier, with the aim of securing support 
to prevent need escalating. The counselling offered is a 
developmentally appropriate therapy delivered through verbal 
and non-verbal mediums including play and creative art by 
qualified therapists. So far 24 pupils have been supported. 

Tudalen21



 Support for specialist provisions is provided by link workers 
from the service, they attend reviews, provide training and co-
ordinate therapeutic intervention. 

 Capacity building work in schools is a priority to ensure staff 
have the skills to be able to support learners with SEBD. The 
team work within primary and secondary schools looking at 
whole school approaches, strategies and suggested 
adjustments for learners. This includes delivering workshops, 
training and working alongside school staff to model effective 
ways of working to support sustainability (Appendix 1).

 Working with other services and organisations is an essential 
aspect of the service’s work to ensure a holistic package of 
support is in place which involves all key stakeholders, 
including the learner’s family. The service are key members of 
numerous groups and forums contributing to Early Intervention 
Panel which provides early help to families, Resource Panel 
which discusses children and young people who are edge of 
care and Contextual Risk Panel which supports young people 
engaged in risky behaviours. 

Cynnydd Background 
Cynnydd is an operation under Specific Objective 2 of the 2014-2020 
West Wales and the Valleys ESF Operational Programme, funding is 
due to finish on 31st August 2022.  This provision was set up across 
the ERW region comprising the local authorities and Further 
Education (FE) colleges in these areas, together with Careers Wales. 
The aim of the operation is to reduce the numbers of young people at 
risk of becoming not in education, employment or training (NEET), 
targeting those ‘most at risk’. This is evidenced through an 
improvement in behaviour, attendance, attainment and progression 
into post 16 destinations

Within Neath Port Talbot Cynnydd provides Youth Engagement 
Worker support to young people aged 11-16. The workers are 

Tudalen22



embedded within all secondary schools, Ysgol Hendrefelin Special 
School and Cefn Saeson Secondary Education Nurture Centre 
(SENC). Initial funding covered a 0.5 worker per school (1.5 for YBB 
for the three schools that merged). Six schools have seen the value 
in the service and have invested funding to ensure they have a full 
time worker in their settings.

Cynnydd also provides funding for additional support within what was 
the Minority Ethnic Achievement Service (MEAS), now the Vulnerable 
Learners Service. 

Cynnydd is very much an extension of the Wellbeing and Behaviour 
Service with support focussed on the most vulnerable learners, in 
particular those at risk of disengagement from mainstream education 
and/or at risk of exclusion.

Learner participation is key to any work undertaken ensuring a 
person centred and strengths based approach (Appendix 2). Any 
young people referred into Cynnydd develop their action plan with 
their worker, so that they are at the centre of decision making. This is 
supported by the completion of a self-efficacy questionnaire. The self-
efficacy measure is based on research into the key emotional and 
social capabilities that young people need to succeed in life and it 
helps measure distance travelled. 96% of Cynnydd participants have 
shown an improvement in self-efficacy.

The service works with young people on identifying and resolving 
issues which may be contributing to their disengagement from 
mainstream education and also to enable them to raise their 
aspirations. Work to support this includes delivering a series of 
interventions such as workshops, school holiday provision, project 
work, one to one sessions, check in’s, breakfast/lunch time clubs, 
qualifications and facilitating access to other services and 
opportunities. The workers liase on a regular basis with parents and 
carers, ensuring they are updated on any work delivered and 
progress made (Appendix 3).

Tudalen23



The service also provides post 16 transition support, this includes 
visits to providers, taster sessions, setting up bank accounts, applying 
for the Education Maintenance Allowance (EMA), interview support 
and workshops. Work placement opportunities are facilitated with 
Careers Wales.

Throughout the pandemic Cynnydd have continued to work in 
schools and support pupils virtually, working closely with their schools 
to ensure they are linking in with the school processes for supporting 
vulnerable learners. 

Impact of Work
In terms of whole service delivery, for both Cynnydd and the 
Wellbeing and Behaviour Service, the most significant outcome for 
the children and young people supported is the improvement in their 
own wellbeing and their skills related to social and emotional 
development. Both services use wellbeing and self-efficacy to 
measure this, we are also undertaking a piece of work with Swansea 
University to start to incorporate the Most Significant Change 
Technique which is a participatory monitoring and evaluation method, 
which will further enhance how impact is measured (Appendix 4).

Cynnydd Impact.
Cynnydd have supported 708 young people. 322 have finished their 
intervention with Cynnydd, 165 of these left with a qualification and 
91% of them are at reduced risk of becoming NEET, our target set 
within the business plan is 60%. 

Cynnydd has been subject to external evaluation by Wavehill and 
OB3 research who were commissioned by the Wales European 
Funding Office (WEFO). Researchers have attended sessions with 
young people to discuss their experience of Cynnydd. Feedback from 
the evaluation was overwhelmingly positive with the following 
conclusion:

Tudalen24



‘We’ve identified many examples of participants being able to 
identify the benefits of engaging with Cynnydd. The young 
people described how their involvement with the project had 
helped then work through personal problems, develop new 
skills, and reshape their relationship with school. Participants 
pointed to feeling happier in their day-to-day life as a result of 
having someone to listen to them, and had started to develop a 
more positive outlook towards school’ OB3 Research.

Cynnydd also featured on the BBC national news as part of a feature 
on Brexit to highlight the excellent projects that could be at risk of 
losing funding. 

For Cynnydd the positive impact is in how they have become an 
essential support provision within Neath Port Talbot schools. The 
vision for Cynnydd workers was that they would be involved in all 
aspects of school life and be an integral part of school support teams.  
This was important to ensure early identification of need, providing 
workers with the opportunity to be proactive in providing support 
throughout the school day and for that support to feed into school 
systems. The impact for young people is that the Cynnydd workers 
have been able to build effective relationships as well as having the 
ability to be accessible and responsive to need. Feedback from head 
teachers and staff within schools reflect the value Cynnydd has 
added. It has been highlighted as a good example of partnership 
working between schools and the local authority as it ensures a joint 
vison and accountability for the work. An example of this is shown in 
Appendix 5, Ysgol Gymraeg Ystalyfera Bro Dur have part funded a 
Cynnydd worker from the start of the project and having seen the 
benefits of the role they have provided additional funding to enable 
that Cynnydd worker to lead on support for vulnerable learners within 
the school. 

Tudalen25



Wellbeing and Behaviour Service Impact.
The service has supported 383 individual pupils through referrals 
from mainstream schools. All learners demonstrated improved 
wellbeing through our wellbeing measures. Evaluations are 
completed with all stakeholders, schools, and other services. 

Training is a particular strength of the team with evaluations being 
consistently positive. The training offered by the team provides some 
theory but focuses on how that theory can be implemented in schools 
to ensure it is relevant and useful for school staff. A particular focus is 
on trauma informed approaches and the impact of adverse childhood 
experiences (ACEs), attachment awareness and working with pupils 
with SEBD. All training has continued through the pandemic, Team 
Teach training has been delivered following risk assessments and a 
Relationship Based Play training containing demonstration videos 
has been developed.  All secondary schools have recently been 
provided with a recorded training session on young people’s 
emotional wellbeing for their return to school. The team are also 
qualified trainers in Youth Mental Health First Aid, every secondary 
school now has at least one staff member trained in it. One team 
member has recently trained to deliver Forest School leader training, 
this will allow schools to be offered the training at a significantly 
reduced cost and support the development of outdoor learning. 
Supporting schools to embed any training they have received is a key 
part of the wellbeing cluster link role.

School staff self-efficacy measures, similar to those used by the 
Educational Psychology service were developed just prior to the 
pandemic and will be used going forward to capture the impact of the 
team in building capacity within schools. This will add to the current 
information captured through evaluations.  

The NPT Wellbeing and Behaviour Continuum has been developed 
by the service in partnership with schools, to ensure learners receive 
the right support and provision to meet their needs, first time every 

Tudalen26



time. The purpose of the Continuum is to ensure a more pro-active 
approach focusing on early identification and intervention.  

The service is often the key link in signposting and co-ordinating the 
holistic support required for the children, young people and families 
referred. When discussing young people in Contextual Risk Panel 
one of the protective factors in most cases is the positive relationship 
between the young person and a member of Cynnydd or the 
Wellbeing and Behaviour Service. In Early Intervention Panel the 
service has been involved in screening referrals from an education 
perspective. The impact of this work has been positive in terms of 
streamlining panel processes, it has contributed to ensuring the right 
support is provided for families. 

Future Work
Future work identified by the service includes: 

 Reducing exclusions by embedding a trauma informed 
approach across schools, in particular through the use of 
Pastoral Support Programmes (PSP), is a priority area for 
development.  PSP’s are put in place when learners are at risk 
of exclusion and are in need of longer-term intervention. The 
aim is that that PSP meetings will be conducted in a trauma 
informed way. A trauma informed approach is a relational 
approach, it has a neuro and biological basis and there is a 
wide range of research to show the impact of trauma on 
children and young people, including the work around ACE’s. 
The standard response to behaviour of consequences for rule 
breakers is not effective for children and young people whose 
neurological development has been impacted on by 
ACE’s/trauma. The service is working closely with Cefn Saeson 
Secondary School to pilot this approach, a primary school will 
also be identified and a conference will be held to share the 
outcomes and lessons learned with wider schools. 

 A contextual safeguarding approach in schools will be piloted in 
Ysgol Hendrefelin Velindre and Theodore Road sites. This will 

Tudalen27



enable an improved approach and understanding to the impact 
of significant harm outside the family home. It will allow us to 
trial the tools available for support with contextual safeguarding 
and adapt for future use. It will also involve holding regular 
‘team around the school’ meetings with key partners including 
South Wales Police, Children and Young People’s Services and 
the Youth Justice and Early Intervention Service to ensure a co-
ordinated, holistic, strengths based approach to supporting 
young people.

 An SEBD Provisions Group consisting of the head teachers and 
lead teachers of our primary and secondary provisions, has 
been established to develop work around SEBD support in 
mainstream schools and to ensure a consistent offer across our 
provisions. An additional remit of this group will be to review 
and update the Wellbeing and Behaviour Continuum in 
consultation with key stakeholders including children and young 
people.  

Challenges and Opportunities
One of the challenges in supporting learners with SEBD is that there 
is no one intervention or strategy that will guarantee success, 
research and studies have shown that positive relationships are 
pivotal to any intervention and this takes time. Within Neath Port 
Talbot we have 941 learners who have SEBD as their prime area of 
need. Working with schools to build capacity and consistency is 
fundamental to providing those children and young people with better 
outcomes. To do this we need to ensure all services are working 
together to avoid duplication, with the recent grant funding from 
Welsh Government to support the mental health and emotional 
wellbeing of children and young people there is a need to ensure co-
ordination. 

Cynnydd funding comes to an end in August 2022, and the potential 
impact of losing this service within our schools will be significant. The 
success of the service is a result of the skillset of the staff, they have 
built positive relationships with young people, their families and 

Tudalen28



school staff. There is a risk these workers will start leaving for more 
secure jobs in the very near future.
 
There are also opportunities to continue to improve our support for 
learners with SEBD. ALN Reform focuses on the further development 
of inclusive learning provision in our schools and embedding person 
centred practices. The new curriculum has health and wellbeing as 
an area of learning with equal status to literacy and maths. There is 
no better time than now to further develop how pupils with SEBD are 
supported and embed whole school approaches to wellbeing. 

Financial Impacts: 
No implications

Integrated Impact Assessment:
There is no requirement to undertake an Integrated Impact 
Assessment as this report is for monitoring / information purposes.

Valleys Communities Impacts: 
No implications.

Workforce Impacts:
No implications. 

Legal Impacts:
No implications.

Risk Management Impacts: 
No Implications.

Consultation:
There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.

Recommendations: 
That Members note the content of this report and the information 
provided in the verbal update.

Tudalen29



Appendices: 
Appendix 1- A Collaborative Trauma Informed Approach.
Appendix 2 -Cynnydd case study. 
Appendix 3- A School Journey.
Appendix 4- Most Significant Change.
Appendix 5- Embedded in school.

Officer Contact:
Andrew Thomas Head of Transformation
Hayley Lervy Co-ordinator for Inclusion- h.lervy@npt.gov.uk Tel: 
01639 763226
Liz Dennis Wellbeing & Behaviour Service Manager- 
e.dennis2@npt.gov.uk Tel: 07817725742

Tudalen30

mailto:e.dennis2@npt.gov.uk


Appendix 1

A Collaborative Trauma Informed Approach

XX is a looked after child and is a pupil at a primary school in Neath 
Port Talbot. They had a number of adverse childhood experiences in 
their life and this has caused them to view themselves, others and the 
world in a wholly negative way. This narrative has meant that they 
have significant social, emotional and behavioural difficulties which 
left them facing a permanent exclusion or referral to a specialist 
provision, due to their unpredictable, dangerous and aggressive 
behaviours. 
Whilst all this is understandable, given their past trauma and 
difficulties in forming relationships, it was proving to be hugely difficult 
to effectively and safely manage their behaviours in a mainstream 
school setting. To give some context to the extreme complexities of 
this child, they once had 5 care placements over the course of one 
school two week holiday period.

XX would frequently engage in behaviour what was dangerous to 
themselves (absconding, climbing and self-injuring) and others 
(becoming physically aggressive, hitting out, throwing things and 
damaging property). This made their behaviour almost 
unmanageable at school and staff had tried all manner of strategies, 
but none yielded any real success. XX was hugely self-directed and 
would not follow the class rules or the curriculum. Their relationships 
with others were negative and it was a case of ‘hurt them before they 
hurt me’.

The Wellbeing Service supported school to develop a trauma 
informed support plan. This consisted of looking at 4 key areas of: 
Safety, Connection (relationships), Regulation (calming activities) and 
Rebuild (reflective practices and developing new coping strategies). A 
plan was devised, whereby trigger points were identified and key 
moments during the day where XX would usually become 

Tudalen31



dysregulated. A ‘team around the XX’ approach was created which 
meant that they had several members of staff who were ‘emotionally 
supportive adults’. The service also looked to build on the strengths 
and interests of XX, which allowed them to develop their self-esteem 
and change their negative self-narrative. Lastly, XX would be slowly 
integrated into class so that they could start to access the curriculum 
and build peer relationships.

XX went from being educated on a 1:1 basis, in a classroom without 
peers and facing exclusion due to the danger they posed to others, to 
now being fully integrated into a mainstream school system. XX 
follows the full curriculum, has made a number of friends, accessing 
all aspects of the school day and most importantly they enjoy being 
there. 

There are still days when XX needs additional support but the 
frequency has diminished tremendously. XX was able to stay in a 
mainstream school setting and work towards meeting their full 
potential. XX is also in a settled home placement now and their 
improved behaviour at school contributed to this.

Tudalen32



Appendix 2- Cynnydd case study.

Cynnydd case study 

Why is the young person at risk of becoming NEET?

I have worked with pupil X for about three years. X had experienced 
trauma as a baby and young child through violence and alcohol. 
When I first met X, they would sporadically not attend lessons, arrive 
late, hide in the toilet in school and generally could not make eye 
contact or communicate verbally with peers and adults alike.

What interventions has the young person taken part in?
I developed a plan to increase x’s engagement with lessons, pupils 
and members of staff. I also included X’s parent and developed 
regular contact. I tried various methods/activities to breakdown the 
reclusive behaviour and to increases X’s social understanding and 
behaviour. One of the first activities I introduced was riding a bike. I 
chose this first to build a relationship, introduce a new skill and most 
importantly, work on their confidence. X wasn’t able to ride a bike at 
first and found it difficult to even put on the bike helmet. X could not 
ride past people and would stop the bike, take off the helmet and hide 
their head until they passed. I persevered with this for about a year 
when, eventually, X could ride comfortably and also pass members of 
the public without stopping. 

The second activity was quite simple, playing Guess Who. This 
forced X to ask questions and interact with myself or whoever I 
nominated to play. This helped dramatically in their communication 
skills and confidence. I also introduced team sports such as football 
and basketball to encourage participation. I also used the game of 
squash to maintain concentration in hand to eye co-ordination and 
also to bring out a controlled form of assertion.

Tudalen33



X was also enrolled on to the Riverside programme (a Forest School 
type of education) which included a level 2 qualification in ‘Work 
Related Education’ and also the Bronze Duke of Edinburgh Award. 
Whilst completing the Award, X took part in a variety of activities and 
challenges (both individual and team-based) within the 
woodland/riverside setting. These have included practical activities, 
such as tool use (e.g. secateurs, loppers, knives, axe, saw), knot 
tying, shelter building, fire making, nature awareness activities and 
team building games and challenges. X also took part in more 
focused learning activities - group discussions, measuring and 
planning and preparing for activities. X also demonstrated good knife 
skills and also skills in building and lighting fires by using a fire steel. 
Throughout the Award, X improved their team and individual work 
ethic and showed good resilience.

X has also attended two educational trips to Pen Y Fan, coasteering 
in the Gower, a multi activity day (including climbing, abseiling and 
zip wire), a practice expedition in the Brecon Beacons and an 
expedition in the Gower (both involved overnight camping).

How has the young person progressed? What have they 
achieved?

Over the three years X has improved dramatically socially and 
emotionally and attends a full timetable. X is now able to instigate a 
conversation with peers and adults and is comfortable in speaking 
publicly. X has also enrolled in Neath College with a view to take an 
apprenticeship the year after.

Tudalen34



Appendix 3- A School Journey

Cynnydd Case Study- School Journey Year 7- Year 11
XX was referred by the school for Cynnydd support in December 
2016. The initial referral was to support XX to improve their behaviour 
and help them to adapt to the secondary school environment. At this 
time XX was finding school extremely difficult, they were struggling 
with the academic side and their frustration with this was leading to 
them being disruptive in class, they were constantly getting sanctions 
for poor behaviour. 

XX was going through a difficult time at home in their personal life. 
This cumulated in Social Services intervention and XX being placed 
in the care of another family member. Having to adapt to a different 
home life proved to be extremely challenging for XX and had a knock-
on effect on their mental health and emotional wellbeing. 

Initial Cynnydd Intervention was put in place for one lesson a week. 
During these initial meetings the main purpose was to build a rapport 
with XX. Gaining their trust was of the upmost importance, so that XX 
felt confident that they could be open and honest about their feelings 
and emotions. Initially it was difficult to engage with XX who had 
already developed a tendency to be disruptive to get attention. 
However, by getting to know XX and what triggered them, along with 
understanding what they enjoyed doing, that mutually trusting 
relationship developed. XX was able to engage well in tasks given to 
them as part of their Cynnydd time. XX particularly enjoyed taking 
part in creative projects, completing practical tasks was what XX 
enjoyed most. 

XX had the opportunity to attend a Fire Fighter for the day at Port 
Talbot Fire Station and also undertook a Fire Safety Awareness 
Course. Both were organised by Cynnydd. 

XX took part in a range of Cynnydd school holiday activities to include 
mountain biking, go karting and coastal walks. This was set up for 

Tudalen35



Cynnydd pupils in order to be able to maintain contact with them 
during the long break. It has been recognised that during this time 
losing the structure of school can have a negative impact on pupil’s 
wellbeing. XX really enjoyed the mountain biking and continued to 
engage in these school holiday activities throughout their years of 
Cynnydd support. 

Although XX was engaging well with Cynnydd support they were still 
finding it difficult to engage in their mainstream lessons. And as a 
result, during Year 8 a mixed package was put in place where XX 
also attended a more specialist provision for part of their time. 
Cynnydd supported XX’s transition, taking them to visit and then 
arranging taster days for them.

XX continued to attend their mainstream school one day a week and 
during this day they had Cynnydd intervention time. This Cynnydd 
intervention focused on personal identity, establishing a positive 
routine, self-discipline, good decision making, behaviour 
management and making positive life choices. 

With the support of Cynnydd XX has continued to mature and 
improve upon their behaviour and as such they have now made the 
transition back to being at mainstream school on a full-time basis. 
XX started studying a level 2 BTEC qualification in year 9 supported 
by the Cynnydd Worker. XX always consistently works hard on this, 
discussing topics such as employment and managing own money. 
This helped XX to understand some of the current difficulties they 
were having. 

XX has also been supported from the Cynnydd Careers Adviser to 
plan for their future after full time education. XX has decided that they 
would like to use their practical skills to look for an apprenticeship in 
construction. XX has been supported to put together a CV and has 
applied for an apprenticeship with a local brickwork company. XX has 
also been supported to apply for a place on a construction course at 

Tudalen36



College as a backup plan in case they don’t secure an 
apprenticeship. 

COVID-19 During lockdown
XX has continued to receive consistent support from Cynnydd and 
the Careers Adviser throughout lockdown restrictions. Contact has 
been made with regular text messages, phone calls and group video 
via Microsoft Teams. XX has engaged really well with this digital 
support. Cynnydd were also able to arrange for XX to attend the 
School Hwb for three days a week so that they could get support to 
complete the online learning tasks. From meeting XX in Year 7 and to 
continue to support them now in Year 11 the difference in them is 
amazing. XX is so positive and resilient with goals and ambitions. 

Parent feedback- email received 8/3/2021 
My name is XXX. I am XX’s mum. XXXX has been my child’s 
Cynnydd support worker since year 7 they are now in year 11. The 
very words that have come from them is that "I wouldn't have got 
through school without XXXX." It speaks for itself really. Over the 
years XX has faced many difficult challenges and the support they 
have received from XXXX is second to none. Money couldn't buy the 
time and effort they’ve invested into XX. Without them I'm not sure 
how XX would have managed their behaviour. They are a young 
person who's not only kept their feet on steady ground but have also 
found themselves a little side job which they wake up to and get to all 
by themselves. I am immensely proud of XX for all that they’ve been 
through and all that they stand for today. I owe that to XXXX 
(Cynnydd worker) without question. I hope they get to continue their 
support to help other families like ours. XX is also waiting for an 
interview in the coming weeks for an apprenticeship that is something 
I never thought possible, 
Thank you 😊

Tudalen37



Appendix 4- Most Significant Change

XX’s brain and Mike’s brain

Background
XX is a 10 year old child. They live with their family and a pet cat. 
They have witnessed domestic violence and have spent some time 
living in a refuge. They like the X box, riding their bike, football, rugby 
and like to play outdoors with friends. XX has struggled with their 
anger and frustration in school and this has caused difficulties at 
home and in school. XX was getting frustrated and this led to angry 
outbursts in school especially at break and lunch times. This led to 
XX having their break times sanctioned where XX felt bored and 
unable to expend their energy leading to more frustration at home 
and school. 
 
What changed?
I am not as angry anymore, I don’t lie to my friends and I’m not as 
cheeky to my teachers and my parents. I don’t feel bad like I used 
too. 

What was it like before? 
Before I used to get frustrated and angry all the time in school and at 
home. I was only allowed 5 minutes at the end of play and dinner 
times and I had to sit on the wall most of the time. I was bored and 
fed up and it made me angrier. I used to try and trip kids up when I 
sat on the wall and I was very bored. I had to stay in and do maths 
work in my class, even though I like maths I was fed up of it. I would 
be grounded at home because of school and I would be cheeky to my 
parents. 

What caused the change?
I had help with my anger and frustration. It helped me have a better 
understanding what was going on in my brain. I call my other brain 
‘’Mike’s brain’’.

Tudalen38



What was it like after? 
My behaviour has got better. I walk away to calm down or ask for 
help when I am feeling frustrated or angry. I can now play on the yard 
the whole play and lunch times where I can use my energy up, I don’t 
get in trouble in my class. I feel happier because I don’t have to stay 
in and do my maths on play and lunch times. 
At home it is better too, I go out after school and play with my friends 
and mum and dad are having help off therapy to help us all at home.  
I have 2 really good friends who I see in school, play on Xbox and go 
out after school with. I am better friends with them and I don’t argue 
anymore with them.

Tudalen39



Appendix 5- Embedded in School- Cynnydd Worker Account.

Having worked at Ysgol Gymraeg Ystalyfera Bro Dur for four years I 
have been able to build strong professional relationships across the 
school. It can be seen that these relationships have given me a 
unique opportunity to attend weekly meetings to share vital 
information about some of the most at-risk students. The 
development of my role has significantly helped members of staff 
understand the importance of a holistic approach in aiding the 
emotional development of all students, specifically some more at risk 
young people at the school. As a result my role has developed to 
leading the school inclusion team. I have been able to organise and 
mentor a team of committed professionals who have regular, 
meaningful contact with students identified as most vulnerable of dis-
engaging with education as a result of a wide range of wellbeing 
issues.
 
Having the ability to lead a team of wellbeing centred workers has 
enabled a larger number of young people to engage with and share 
their most complex issues. Having the consistency of regular non-
formal contact in a formal setting is key to building sustained 
purposeful relationships. What I have learned most during my time at 
the school is that students who are at risk of harming themselves, 
falling out of education or expressing negative behaviour simply need 
a designated person at school who is readily available to listen, teach 
and advocate on their behalf. This essentially is the fundamental 
purpose of my role.  Providing the school with someone who has the 
freedom and skills to encourage inclusion – however impossible the 
task may seem.  Furthermore, my long-term vision for this role is to 
encourage a school-wide approach, training all staff to understand 
the importance of child centred approach to personal, emotional and 
academic development.
 
Head teacher comment:

Tudalen40



Cynydd funding has allowed Ystalyfera to set up a provision within 
the school which became a key part of our daily support for not only 
vulnerable pupils, but the wider school community.  In assessing the 
impact of this funding, we would do well, not only to focus on the 
change in life ambition, life chances and opportunities of our most 
vulnerable, but more so on the character of the school community 
and the message it sends to staff, pupils and their parents, on the 
importance of wellbeing and support.  Stafell stwnsh, funded and 
partly supported through Cynydd has been built on a real vibrant 
ownership of partners who brought their limited resources to bear and 
make a real difference on the lives of young people. This has meant 
we can expand our provision, guidance and support to reach more 
pupils, but also to effect change on our teaching staff their wellbeing 
and ability, desire to help pupils within a wider context.  I cannot 
underline strongly enough the importance of joint funding, 
accountability and communication to ensure this provision is not a 
bolt-on, an added dimension, but an integral part of the school's 
strategic direction and support for its pupils. As we face the most 
difficult challenge in our provision, this model of integrated, effective 
partnership support needs to be safeguarded for the future- Matthew 
Evans

Tudalen41



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Version 3 - 14 January 2021 Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies

DRAFT
Education, Skills and Culture Scrutiny Committee 

Forward Work Programme 2020/21

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Officer

19 November Impact from Covid-19 on Youth Unemployment and Disengagement 
– possibly an update from the Youth Unemployment taskforce 

Aled Evans

Update on reopening of schools – include Blended learning, 
attendance, performance, how children with learning difficulties are 
coping with the new environments, feedback for how preparation 
work is going for Year 10/11 (GCSE years), Inclusion of an analysis 
on lost time due to positive tests

Aled Evans/Chris 
Millis

21 January Verbal Update on the Impacts Covid-19 has had on the Education 
Department

Aled Evans

Consultation on 2021/22 Budget Proposals Aled Evans/ 
Hywel Jenkins

18 March Update report on libraries – include take-up Andrew Thomas

Report on the work of Cynnydd and the Wellbeing Service Andrew Thomas

T
udalen43

E
item

 yr A
genda8



Version 3 - 14 January 2021 Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies

29 April
(Provisional)

Update on leisure – include the effect that Covid -19 has had on 
leisure, the reopening of leisure facilities during this time, the 
current position with Celtic Leisure.

Andrew Thomas/ 
Paul Walker

T
udalen44


	Agenda
	4 Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol
	Cofnodion

	5 Gwasanaeth Llyfrgell Castell-nedd Port Talbot - Diweddariad Covid-19
	6 Adroddiad ar y Gwasanaeth a'r Lles
	8 Blaenraglen Waith

